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To: Elizabeth Burdick
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From: ScottR. Noel
Date: November 6, 2024
Subject: Peer Review of Noise and Air Quality Analyses for Gales Ferry Intermodal Facility
Reference: HMMH Project No. 24-0268A

Harris Miller Miller & Hanson Inc. (HMMH) has completed our peer review of the noise, air quality,
and toxicology analyses performed for the proposed Gales Ferry Intermodal Facility on Route 12 in
Ledyard, Connecticut. HMMH reviewed the following materials, which were provided to the Town
of Ledyard (Town):

e “Cashman Gales Ferry Intermodal, LLC Industrial Regrading Sound Study” — Report
prepared by RSG and dated September 2024 (RSG Study; Section 1 below).

e “Gales Ferry Project Vibration Impact Analysis” — Report prepared by Sauls Seismic and
dated October 1, 2024 (Sauls Seismic Study; Section 2 below).

e “Analysis of Rock Blasting Adjacent to WCPA Water Main and Eversource Transmission Line
Supports at the Gales Ferry Industrial Site” — Report prepared by Aimone-Martin
Associates, LLC and dated September 11, 2024 (Aimon-Martin Associates Study; Section 2
below).

e “Air Emissions Modeling Results, Gales Ferry Intermodal” — Report prepared by Verdantas
and dated September 30, 2024 (Verdantas Study; Section 3 below).

HMMH conducted a site visit to the property and surrounding communities on September 5, 2024,
during which we reviewed the areas on the project site where materials would be removed and the
processes that would be used for the excavation and removal. We also toured the surrounding
residential communities in the Town of Ledyard to review land uses, proximity, and terrain in the
area.

{1. RSG Study

LS

HMMH has found the RSG Study to be comprehensively and largely conservatively prepared,
addressing all pertinent state noise regulations. The ambient background noise monitoring program
was conducted adequately, including 9 to 14 days of continuous noise monitoring at four sites
along the project’s property line in different directions. The noise prediction model and the
modeling approach were sufficiently detailed; they appear to account for all significant noise
sources in the different phases of the excavation project and the sound propagation paths to the
surrounding homes that could be potentially impacted by noise.

However, the report states that no residential properties would exceed the Connecticut state noise
limit of 61 A-weighted decibels (dBA), and Figure 17, representing Phase 5 of the project, shows the
61 dBA noise contour on the residential parcel with condominiums on Pheasant Run across Route
12 from the project’s active area. The contour also comes very close to the adjacent parcels off
Thames View Pentway. Predicted noise levels are very near the noise limit and in close proximity to
the residential areas leave no margin for error in the modeling or variability in the noise emissions
of the equipment actually used on site. Therefore, HMMH suggests that additional noise mitigation
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be included to prevent these potential exceedances of the Connecticut noise limits. We suggest
that noise predictions in residential areas should be no more than 56 dBA to ensure compliance.

Additionally, the report confusingly labels the noise monitoring locations with different names in
different places. On Figure 2, they are labeled North, South, East, and West. But in the text and
tables, they are labeled Entrance, House, River and Woods. Those names should replace the
directional names shown in Figure 2.

Audibility of the Excavation in Residential Areas

The existing noise monitoring locations were conducted at the Gales Ferry property lines and not in
the affected residential communities. The East/Entrance location is located very close to Route 12
and therefore captured higher sound levels than Thames View Pentway homes, most of which are
set farther back from Route 12. The Pheasant Run Condominiums are best represented by the
South/Woods location, which showed a daytime average L90 value of 44 dBA. The North/House
and South/Woods sites are likely to best represent the background sound levels for most of the
Thames View Pentway homes, with daytime average L90 values of 44 and 47 dBA.

When project sound levels exceed 5 dBA above the background L90, the noise will be clearly
audible. When project sound levels exceed 10 dBA above the background, they will be very audible
and are likely to be considered intrusive by many residents. The Pheasant Run Condominium
community is at an elevation more than 130 feet above the developed part of the project site, so
the area will have clear sound paths from the operation to the homes during much of the
excavation process. Many of the homes on Thames View Pentway are also elevated and will also
have clear sound paths to the much of the excavation operations.

The noise contours shown during most of the phases of the excavation operation range from 50 to
60 dBA, with many of the phases showing levels in the 55 dBA range. With background levels in the
mid-40s dBA; the excavation noise at many of the nearby homes will be continuously audible for
most of the duration of the project and will very intrusive for considerable periods of time.

Given the extended duration of this project, HMMH strongly suggests that modifications to the
project’s plans be implemented to reduce the projected noise levels at the nearby homes to be no
more than 5 dBA above the background L90s for the entire duration of the project. Predictions of
50 dBA or less in the communities mentioned above would largely accomplish this objective.

2. Sauls Seismic Study and Aimon-Martin Associates Study

HMMH has found the Sauls Seismic Study and the Aimon-Martin Associates Study to be
comprehensively prepared including most of the applicable regulatory criteria and guidelines. We
agree with the findings in the Aimon-Martin Associates study that blasting would not cause issues
for the utility infrastructure, specifically the transmission line and water main.

The Sauls Seismic Study indicates that there would be no exceedances of the applicable regulatory
criteria and guidelines identified in the study. HMMH agrees with this finding for general
construction using heavy equipment such as compactors; however, for blast vibration we suggest
that consideration be made to more conservative damage criteria, such as those provided in the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual (FTA
2018). These thresholds identify that structural damage may occur when vibration levels are as low
as 0.3 peak particle velocity (PPV) in inches per second for engineered concrete and masonry
structures, such as the home located at 22 Anderson Drive. The report indicates that ground
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vibration associated with blasting would be 0.91 PPV, a level that may cause damage to these
homes.

The blast design should be revisited to ensure that levels remain below the FTA structural damage
guidelines. A pre-construction/pre-blasting survey must be conducted of the structures near the
blasting effort to identify any damage to foundations that are not associated with the blasting
effort, and a post-blast survey should be conducted to identify if any damage has occurred because
of the blasting effort. Additionally, continuous vibration monitoring must be completed at these
residences and the other sensitive structures located closest to blasting activities as blasting efforts
move around the Gales Ferry Intermodal site. If the criteria/guidelines are exceeded, the blast
operations must cease, the approach must be revised to eliminate potential exceedances, and a
damage assessment must be conducted. The results of the damage assessment must be provided
to the Town within 1 week so appropriate action can be taken.

Air overpressure predictions in the Sauls Seismic report indicate levels will be below the criteria
limit of 133 linear decibels (dBL). We agree with this finding; however, the predicted level of 132.24
dBL is very close to exceeding the limit. The report references the Office of Surface Mining,
Reclamation and Enforcement (OSM) blast criteria as described in their Blasting Guidance Manual
for vibration limits; however, they do not reference the air overpressure guidelines. We assume this
is because they are similar to the criteria used, for example 133 dBL at 2 Hertz {Hz). The report does
not recognize that the OSM guidelines differ in that they indicate if predicted levels are within 3 dB
an exceedance may occur. Since the predicted levels are within this tolerance of the criteria limit
and within OSM guidelines, our finding is that the applicant must also monitor air overpressure
associated with blasting activities to ensure these criteria are not exceeded. Like the blast vibration
monitoring, if criteria/guidelines are exceeded, blast operations must cease and be adjusted to
eliminate exceedances.ﬁAdditionaIIy, a damage assessment must be conducted and the results
provided to the Town within 1 week so appropriate action can be taken!

3. Verdantas Study

HMMH found the Verdantas study to be comprehensively and largely conservatively prepared,
addressing all pertinent air quality regulations. HMMH found that the Verdantas study used the
correct dispersion model and representative meteorological data, and did not find any inaccuracies
in the development of modeling or emission parameters. Modeling input files and the various
model input parameters were not checked for accuracy as the files were not provided.

The predictions use appropriate methods such as AP-42 and use of AERMOD including the
meteorological conditions and land uses. The primary and secondary National Ambient Air Quality
Standards (NAAQS) are applied correctly, and the modeling results indicate that there would be no
exceedance with the approach that the applicant has committed to. Nevertheless, to provide
additional protection for the surrounding community, our finding is that the applicant must
continuously monitor particulate matter emissions to ensure that there are no exceedances
associated with the site development and aggregate production efforts. Any exceedances of the
primary or secondary criteria must be provided to the Town and what action will be taken to
eliminate the cause of the exceedance.



